

# DRAFT CALDERWOOD SECTION 94 DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS PLAN

2016





# CALDERWOOD RELEASE AREA SECTION 94 DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS PLAN (2016) WOLLONGONG CITY COUNCIL

Document Control Document ID: Calderwood Section 94 Plan						
Rev	Date	Revision Details	Typist	Author	Verifier	Approver
No						
1		Draft S94 plan for Council consideration and exhibition				

#### Contents

Part 1 – Sui	mmary Schedules	1
Part 2 – Ad	ministration and Operation of the Plan	
2. INT	RODUCTION	
2.1.	What is a Section 94 Development Contribution?	
2.2.	What is the Name of this Plan?	3
2.3.	Where does this Plan Apply	
2.4.	What is the Purpose of this Plan?	
2.5.	Application of This Plan	6
2.6.	Development to which this Plan Applies	
2.7.	Commencement of the Plan	
2.8.	Relationship to Other Plans and Policies	6
2.9.	Relationship to Special Infrastructure Contribution	7
DEVELO	PER CONTRIBUTIONS	7
2.10.	Policies and Procedures on the Levying and Payment of Contributions	7
2.11.	Method of Payment	7
2.12.	Planning Agreements	
2.13.	When must a Contribution be paid?	
2.14.	Deferred or Periodic Payment	
2.15.	Construction certificates and the obligation of accredited certifiers	
2.16.	Complying development and the obligation of accredited certifiers	
2.17.	Credit and Offsets for Works in Kind	
2.18.	Credit for Existing Development	
2.19.	Savings and Transitional Arrangements	
2.20.	Pooling of Contributions	
2.21.	Exemptions	
2.22.	Calculation of Contributions	
2.23.	Review and Monitoring of Plan	
2.24.	Contributions Register	
2.25.	Inforce Date of Plan	
Part 3 - Stra	ategy Plans	
3. Res	idential Development Nexus	
3.1.	Rationale for New Facilities and Services	
3.2.	Cost of Facilities	

3.	.3.	Transport Facilities	17
3.	.4.	Plan Administration	19
Part 4 ·	– Woi	rk Schedules	20
Part 5 -	– Sup	porting Material	21
Part 6 ·	Part 6 –Definitions		

# Part 1 – Summary Schedules

This Plan is the Calderwood Section 94 Development Contributions Plan (2016).

The contributions received from this Plan will provide roads, bridges and administration costs.

The road works to be provided will contribute toward satisfying the needs of the incoming population of the Calderwood Urban Release Area and their impacts on the road network in West Dapto Release Area in particular Yallah Marshall Mount. The 609 hectare site will provide around 4,800 homes for approximately 12,500 residents.

The cost of required road works and administration tasks are summarised below.

Table. 1.1 WORK Schedule. Cost Per Ca	itegoly (base cost)
Transport and Traffic	Amount
Land	\$10,422,390
Works	\$52,345,349
Sub Total	\$62,767,739
Administration	Amount
Sub Total	\$627,677

#### Table: 1.1 Work Schedule: Cost Per Category (base cost)

Contributions for the Calderwood Release Area (excluding Stage 1) will be levied at the time of development of the land rezoned for residential purposes (General and Large Lot Residential) within the Wollongong Local Government Area. The contribution is based on a per hectare rate as shown in Figure 1.2, and equates to \$8,232.17 per dwelling when considered across the entire Calderwood Release Area.

#### Table 1.2 - Contribution Per Hectare – Wollongong Local Government Area

Zoning	Contribution Per Hectare
R1 General Residential	\$756,915
R5 Large Lot Residential	\$76,391

Note: This Rate excludes Stages 1 which was approved by the Land and Environment Court

#### **Development Timetable:**

It is anticipated that the expenditure will occur on a pro-rata basis over the life of the development for the Calderwood release area.

#### Table 1.3 Development Timetable

Stage	Completion year (Revised)	No. dwellings	Cumulative total
1 (Court Approved)	2016	231	231
2	2018	550	781
3-4	2020	1450	2231
5-6	2026	1300	3531
7	2033	600	4131
8	2037	550	4186

(source: Delfin Lend Lease Staging Plan)

#### Table 1.4 - Contribution Per Person Across Calderwood Release Area (Residential Development)

Facility Type	Contribution Per Person	
Transport - Land	\$451.19	
Transport - Capital	\$2,266.03	
Administration	\$27.17	
Total	\$2,744.39	

(based on an Occupancy Rate of 3 persons per dwelling)

#### Table 1.5 - Contribution Per Dwelling Across Calderwood Release Area (Residential Development)

Dwelling Type	<b>Contribution Per Dwelling</b>
Subdivision, Dwelling House, Dual Occupancies	\$8,233.17

# Part 2 – Administration and Operation of the Plan

### 2. INTRODUCTION

#### 2.1. What is a Section 94 Development Contribution?

Development contributions are contributions made for the purpose of public amenities and services required because of development and are paid by those undertaking development.

Section 94 of the Environment Planning and Assessment (EP&A) Act 1979 enables Councils to seek contributions from developers where development is likely to increase the demand for public facilities. These are levied at the time of development consent.

The EP&A Act establishes that a Council can only require a Section 94 contribution if:

- The development will or is likely to require the provision or increase the demand for public amenities and services within the area;
- There is an adopted contributions plan; and
- The contribution is reasonable.

The contribution can either be:

- Land dedication;
- Monetary contribution for the cost of works or facilities to be provided in the future;
- Monetary contribution for the cost of works or facilities already provided in anticipation of development;
- Material public benefit (works in kind); or
- A combination of the above.

The ability to levy and recoup costs for the provision of roads is critical in the Calderwood Urban Release Area as the land is being transitioned from rural to residential. The additional traffic generated by Calderwood has significant impacts on the roads within the West Dapto Release area. Calderwood will eventually support a population of approximately 12,500 and the levy system will significantly reduce the financial burden on Council and existing residents.

It is therefore important that the contributions levied are reasonable and are a direct consequence of the development. These contributions are therefore limited to the essential works and facilities considered necessary by Council.

#### 2.2. What is the Name of this Plan?

This Contribution Plan is called Calderwood Section 94 Development Contribution Plan 2016.

#### 2.3. Where does this Plan Apply

The plan covers all land with Calderwood Urban Release Area as identified in Figure 1, which was rezoned by the NSW Department of Planning on 14 January 2011 through the State Environmental Planning Policy (Major Developments) 2009. Part 28 of the SEPP applies to land within both the Wollongong City Council and the Shellharbour City Council areas.

This Plan will only apply to land that forms part of the Calderwood Urban Release Area which is within the Wollongong Local Government Area (LGA). Although there is a clear nexus between the need for additional roads works within the West Dapto Release Area as a result of the Calderwood Release Area, Shellharbour City Council has entered into a Planning Agreement with the developer of the land (Calderwood Release Area) which precludes Council from imposing a condition on current and future development consents pursuant to Section 94 of the

*Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979.* Therefore, this Plan seeks to levy development contributions from the portion of land within the Wollongong LGA, which will ultimately form the final stages (Part Stage 7 and Stage 8) of the Release Area.

The ultimate Calderwood Urban Release Area extends beyond the area zoned for urban development. At this time this Section 94 plan only applies to the area zoned by the SEPP (Major Developments) 2009. If other parts of the ultimate Calderwood Urban Release Area are rezoned for urban development, they will be considered for inclusion in the Plan.



Figure 1 Land to which this Plan applies

#### 2.4. What is the Purpose of this Plan?

The purpose of the Plan is to:

- a. Authorise Council to impose conditions under Section 94 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 for a contribution to the provision, extension or augmentation of public amenities and services, when granting consent to development on land to which this Plan applies.
- b. Outline the anticipated demand for public facilities and servicing as a result of new development in Calderwood.
- c. Provide a framework for the efficient and equitable determination, collection and management of development contributions.
- d. Ensure that development makes a reasonable contribution towards the provision of services and facilities.
- e. Ensure existing community is not burdened by the provision of amenities and public services required as a result of future development.
- f. Ensure Council's management of development contributions complies with relevant legislation and guidelines.

#### 2.5. Application of This Plan

When a development application is lodged and relates to land to which this plan applies, Council shall levy contributions on development in accordance with the provisions of this Plan.

A Contributions Plan becomes part of the development control process under the EP&A Act by virtue of Sections 80A and 94. The provisions of this plan are one of a number of considerations that are relevant when Council determines a development application in accordance with Section 80 of the Act.

#### 2.6. Development to which this Plan Applies

The following types of development are required to make a contribution:

- Subdivision for residential purposes;
- construction of a dwelling;
- a dual occupancy;
- multiple dwelling housing;
- multi-unit housing;
- seniors housing; and/or
- other dwellings.

Development contributions will not be sought for retail premises, office premises, business premises, community facilities and recreational facilities (excluding any residential components).

#### 2.7. Commencement of the Plan

This development contributions plan has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 94 of the EP&A Act and Part 4 of the EP&A Regulation 2000 and takes effect from the date on which public notice was published, pursuant to clause 31(4) of the EP&A Regulation.

#### 2.8. Relationship to Other Plans and Policies

This plan repeals the following section 94 / 94A contributions plans applying in that part of the Wollongong local government area as referred to in section 2.3:

• The area is identified in the West Dapto Release Area Section 94 Contributions Plan (2015) as part of the West Dapto release area but not as an area considered a Contribution Collection Area.

Calderwood adjoins stage 5 of the West Dapto Urban Release Area, known as the Yallah Marshall Mount precinct. The West Dapto Section 94 Development Contributions Plan (2015) applies to the Yallah Marshall Mount precinct and a new draft West Dapto Section 94 Development Contributions Plan (2016) has been exhibited. The cost of the provision for roads and bridges are apportioned to both plans, as they will be utilised by residents of both release areas.

Any other contributions plan approved by Council (and in force under Division 6 or Part 4 of the EP&A Act at the time this Plan commenced) does not apply to development that is subject to a requirement to pay a contribution under this Section 94 Plan.

#### 2.9. Relationship to Special Infrastructure Contribution

This Plan does not affect the determination, collection or administration of any special infrastructure contribution levied under section 94EF of the EP&A Act in respect to development on land to which this Plan applies.

Applicants should refer to details of Special Infrastructure Contributions issued by the Department of Planning in relation to the Calderwood release area.

#### **DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS**

#### 2.10. Policies and Procedures on the Levying and Payment of Contributions

The following sections describe the policies and procedures involved in levying and payment of developer contributions under this plan including method/timing of payment, planning agreements, deferred/periodic payment, obligations of accredited certifier with respect to construction certificates/complying development, savings and transitional provisions, credits/offsets for works-in kind, calculation of contributions rates and the review and monitoring process of the plan.

#### 2.11. Method of Payment

Council will accept Section 94 payments in one or a combination of the following methods:

#### Monetary Contribution:

This is the most common method. However it can be offset by providing a material public benefit as identified in the Contributions Plan.

#### Material Public Benefit (Works-in-Kind):

Where an applicant makes a request and Council in its absolute discretion determines that it is appropriate, an applicant may provide a material public benefit (commonly referred to as works-in-kind) in part, or full, satisfaction of a monetary contribution.

Any request must demonstrate that the works in kind are of equivalent or greater benefit to the community compared to what has been identified under this Contributions Plan. The proposed works in kind offset must be included in the conditions of consent or a S96 modification of the consent, to reflect the proposed offset.

The works must be included in the works schedule as set out in Section 4. The cost of the work will be offset against the contribution required for the same facility category only.

The amount of the offset will be as agreed by Council and will not exceed the cost allocation for the works included in the Contributions Plan.

In assessing such a request, Council will generally take into account the following:

- whether the proposed work in kind will be to a suitable standard for Council to eventually accept;
- finalisation of, or consistency with, the detailed design of the facilities;
- the submission of plans and cost estimates to Council of the proposed works to be undertaken by the applicant;
- whether the location, siting and design of the proposed works has regard to the Master Plan for Calderwood and West Dapto Release Area;
- the timing of completion and future recurrent costs including staffing and maintenance and future management (particularly if work to a higher standard is proposed);
- Council may consider works to a higher standard than the Contributions Plan allowance, however no reimbursement of additional costs will be provided;
- the financial implications for cash flow and whether the proposed works pre-empt the future orderly implementation of works as identified in the works schedule; and
- future dedication, handover and management arrangements.

All agreements will include, but not limited to, the following:

- the works to be undertaken;
- the timing of the works;
- the quality of the works;
- the cost of the works;
- the applicant's rights and responsibilities; and
- Council's rights and responsibilities.

#### Dedication of Land:

Council may accept the dedication of land (identified for public purposes under this plan) to offset the required monetary contribution. The value of land will be negotiated between the applicant and Council, and any monetary contributions payable will be reduced by the value of the land formally agreed upon. An appropriate condition will be included in any consent applying to land identified for public purposes to ensure that the land is transferred to Council at no cost.

#### Value of Works:

The value of works will be determined utilising the following method:

- a. Any Credit will be calculated based on the actual cost of works or the agreed cost estimate, whichever is the lesser. The agreed cost estimate will be determined by a review of the costs submitted by the applicant via Council's Infrastructure Team or a Registered Quantity Surveyor at Councils discretion;
- b. The agreed cost estimate can be amended by submission of a variation request by the applicant which will be reviewed and certified by a registered Quantity Surveyor;
- c. The actual cost of works is required to be evidenced and verified by a registered Quantity Surveyor;
- d. The Quantity Surveyor to act on the project will be chosen by Council from a list of 3 recommended by the applicant all of whom are to be members of Panels for The NSW Department of Commerce or Local Government Procurement; and
- e. Quantity Surveyor service costs are to be borne by the applicant.

#### Value of Land:

Developers of land to which this Plan applies will be required to provide either:

- sufficient, usable and (where appropriate) embellished land for the particular facilities identified in this Plan to meet the needs of the population attributable to the proposed development; or, alternatively
- an equivalent monetary contribution to Council for the acquisition and embellishment of land for the particular facilities identified in this Plan.

Council will, wherever appropriate, require developers to dedicate land free of cost for the facilities identified in this Plan. Where the development does not, or cannot provide the full land area required as a contribution the shortfall will be required as a monetary contribution. The contribution rates included in this Plan reflect the monetary contribution required where land is not dedicated free of cost.

Where the contribution required is by way of dedication free of cost, the land:

- is to have an associated draft plan of management prepared in accordance with Part 2, Division 2 of the Local Government Act 1993 and Part 4, Division 2 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 and prepared at full cost to the developer (This applies only where the dedication relates to the provision of community or open space and recreation facilities); and
- The value is determined in accordance with either section 2.13, the Land Acquisition (Just Terms Compensation) Act 1991 or if listed for sale on the open market potentially by way of negotiation in accordance with Council's obligations and polices. This will be offset against monetary contributions required under this Plan.

#### **2.12. Planning Agreements**

In accordance with Section 93F(1) of the EP&A Act, a planning agreement is a voluntary agreement or arrangement between a planning authority and a developer under which the developer agrees to make contributions towards a public purpose. A planning agreement may wholly or partly exclude the application of Section 94 to the development that is subject of the agreement.

This offer may include a monetary contribution, dedication of land, the carrying out of works, or another material public benefit for public purposes. Those purposes need not wholly relate to the impacts of the applicant's development but need to be consistent with the items listed in Section 4.

The provisions of Sections 93F to 93L of the EP& A Act and accompanying Regulation prescribe the contents, form, subject matter and procedures for making planning agreements.

Any person seeking to enter into a planning agreement should refer to Council's policy on Planning Agreements and in the first instance submit a proposal in writing to Council, documenting the planning benefits and how the proposal would address the demands created by development for new public infrastructure, amenities and services. The submission may include a copy of the draft agreement.

Public purposes are defined in the EP&A Act as (without limitation) the provision or recoupment of the cost for providing:

- public amenities or public services;
- affordable housing;
- affordable housing or transport or other infrastructure;
- transport or other infrastructure relating to land;
- funding of recurrent expenditure relating to the provision of public amenities or public services;
- monitoring of the planning impacts of development; and

• conservation or enhancement of the natural environment.

#### 2.13. When must a Contribution be paid?

A contribution must be paid to the Council at the time specified in the condition that imposes the contribution. If no such time is specified, the contribution must be paid prior to the issue of a subdivision certificate, construction certificate or complying development certificate.

#### 2.14. Deferred or Periodic Payment

Council will only permit deferred or periodic payment where development is staged and only with approval of the Council Officer(s) whose position(s) holds the required Council delegations.

The stages of development and relevant contribution payment for each stage must be clearly documented in the conditions of consent. In this regard a Section 96 modification of consent is required if proposed staging of development is not reflected in the original consent.

For development which is staged, Section 94 contributions must be paid at the rate applicable at the time of subdivision or construction certificate, for at least the number of additional lots/dwellings for which subdivision or construction certificate release is sought.

For each stage, the calculation of the number of lots/dwellings for which contributions are payable will count any residue lot as a single lot.

The circumstances for deferred or periodic payments are as follows:

- Compliance with the provisions is unreasonable or unnecessary in the circumstances of the case.
- Deferred or periodic payment of the contribution will not prejudice the timing or the manner of the provision of public facilities included in the works program.
- Where the applicant intends to make a contribution by way of a planning agreement, works in kind or land dedication in lieu of a cash contribution, and Council and the applicant have a legally binding agreement for the provision of the works or land dedication.
- There are circumstances justifying the deferred or periodic payment of the contribution.

If Council does accept a deferred or periodic payment Council may require the applicant to provide a bank guarantee by a bank for the full amount of the contribution or the outstanding balance. The conditions for deferred or periodic payment and the requirements of the bank guarantee will be set in the conditions of consent.

#### 2.15. Construction certificates and the obligation of accredited certifiers

In accordance with Section 94EC of the EP&A Act and clause 146 of the EP&A Regulation 2000, a certifying authority must not issue a construction certificate for building work or subdivision work under a development consent unless it has verified that each condition requiring the payment of monetary contributions has been satisfied.

In particular, the certifier must ensure that the applicant provides receipts confirming that contributions have been fully paid and copies of such receipts must be included with copies of the certified plans provided to the Council in accordance with clause 142(2) of the EP&A Regulation 2000. Failure to follow this procedure may render such a certificate invalid.

The only exceptions to the requirement are where a works in kind, material public benefit, dedication of land, or deferred payment arrangement has been agreed by the Council. In such cases, Council will issue a letter confirming that an alternative payment method has been agreed with the applicant.

#### 2.16. Complying development and the obligation of accredited certifiers

In accordance with Section 94EC of the EP&A Act accredited certifiers must impose a condition requiring monetary contributions in accordance with this Contributions Plan for the following development types:

• Dwelling houses on an allotment where no previous contribution under Section 94 has been made.

The conditions imposed must be consistent with Council's standard Section 94 consent conditions and be strictly in accordance with this Contributions Plan. It is the professional responsibility of the accredited certifiers to accurately calculate the contribution and to apply the Section 94 condition correctly.

#### 2.17. Credit and Offsets for Works in Kind

There may be cases where an applicant carries out works in kind, with the prior agreement of Council, with such works included in the Schedule of Works in this Contributions Plan but the cost of which exceeds the contribution required for that facility category. In these situations the applicant will be reimbursed for the cost of the works that:

- exceed the contribution due within that facility category, and
- have been approved by Council as being consistent with the contributions plan.

#### 2.18. Credit for Existing Development

Council will determine any applicable credit(s) based on the number & type of lawful existing development i.e. Residential Lot or Dwelling.

#### 2.19. Savings and Transitional Arrangements

A development application which has been submitted prior to the adoption of this plan but not determined shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of the plan which applied at the date of determination of the application.

#### **2.20. Pooling of Contributions**

This plan authorises monetary Section 94 contributions paid for different purposes to be pooled and applied (progressively or otherwise) for those purposes. The priorities for the expenditure of levies are shown in the works schedule.

#### 2.21. Exemptions

The only exemptions allowed are:

- a. Those that are subject to a Direction from the Minister for Planning under Section 94E of the EP&A Act 1979;
  - i. for the purpose of disabled access (10/11/06);
  - ii. for the sole purpose of affordable housing (10/11/06) (including Granny Flat/Secondary dwelling under 60m2);
  - iii. for the purpose of reducing the consumption of mains-supplied potable water, or reducing the energy consumption of a building (10/11/06);
  - iv. for the sole purpose of adaptive re-use of an item of environmental heritage (note: the term "item" and "environmental heritage" have the same meaning as in the *Heritage Act 1977*) (10/11/06);
  - v. other than the subdivision of land, where a condition under section 94 of the Act has been imposed under a previous development consent relating to the subdivision of the land on which the development is proposed to be carried out (10/11/06);

- vi. Seniors living development under SEPP Seniors Housing 2004 by a Social Housing provider (14/9/07);
- vii. Components of school development that is a Building Education Revolution (BER) project (9/9/09);
- viii. Port Kembla Lease Area, as mapped in the Ports SEPP (6/12/13).
- An application by the Council for community infrastructure, such as but not limited to libraries, community facilities, child care facilities, recreational areas, recreational facilities or car parks;
- c. An application by, or on behalf of, the NSW Government for public infrastructure, such as but not limited to hospitals, police stations, fire stations, educational facilities and public transport infrastructure, if supported by a comprehensive submission; and
- d. Any other development for which Council considers an exemption is warranted, where the decision is made by formal ratification of the Council at a Council meeting, if supported by a comprehensive submission.

For an exemption to be considered where a comprehensive submission is required, any such development will need to submit a comprehensive submission to justify the exemption and providing a case for the exemption by including, but not limited to, the following information:

- Justification for the exemption;
- The mechanism ensuring that such development will remain in the form proposed in the future (ie not to increase future demand on public amenities and services), note: where a further development application or application for complying development under the EP&A Act is required for any changes to the development no mechanism is required. However, if a change of use is available by way of exempt development then the requirements for a mechanism remains;
- Other items if applicable:
  - How the Development will incorporate the maintenance of the item of heritage significance;
  - How the development will contribute to the public benefit of the community;
  - Works in the public domain included in the development; and
  - How the residents/users will utilise existing private facilities attached to the development that replicate those types provided by Council.

Exemptions (partial or full) in addition to those subject to a Direction from the Minister for Planning under Section 94E of the EP&A Act, will only to be granted with the approval of the Council Officer(s) whose position(s) holds the required Council delegations. A Council resolution is required for other developments requiring exemptions, apart from the application for or on behalf of the Council and/or NSW Government.

#### 2.22. Calculation of Contributions

#### 2.22.1. Contribution Formula

Council will be utilising the traditional 'nominal' dollar value approach for the Calderwood and West Dapto release area Section 94 Plan.

#### 2.22.2. Land Acquisition Index

Contribution rates for land acquisition will be indexed based on the average of the annual percentage change in the Established House Price Index for Sydney, published by the Australian Bureau of Statistics.

Land specifically identified within the Plan for infrastructure and facility requirements that have already been acquired by Council will be indexed quarterly in accordance with the Consumer Price Index – All groups Sydney (CPI). This index is published by the Australian Bureau of Statistics on a quarterly basis.

#### 2.22.3. Capital Expenditure and Administrative Cost Index

Contribution rates for capital expenditure and administrative costs will be indexed quarterly in accordance with the Consumer Price Index – All groups Sydney (CPI). This index is published by the Australian Bureau of Statistics on a quarterly basis.

The method of indexing the contribution rates is to multiply the base contribution rate by the most recently published CPI at the time of payment.

#### 2.22.4. Formula

# 2.22.4.1. Contribution rates for all Capital Expenditure, Land already acquired and Administrative Costs

For changes to the All Group CPI Index, the contribution rates within the Plan will be reviewed on a quarterly basis in accordance with the following formula:

\$C <sub>A</sub>	+	\$C <sub>A</sub> x ([Current Index - Base Index])	\$C <sub>A</sub> x ([Current Index - Base Index])	
		[Base Index]		

where:

\$C <sub>A</sub>	is the contribution at the time of adoption of the plan
	expressed in dollars
Current Index	is the All Groups CPI (Sydney) as published by the
	Australian Bureau of Statistics available at the time of
	review of the contribution rate
Base Index	is the All Groups CPI (Sydney) as published by the
	Australian Bureau of Statistics at the date of adoption of
	this plan.

Note: In the event that the current All Groups CPI is less than the base All groups CPI, the current All Groups CPI shall be taken as not less than the previous All Groups CPI.

# 2.22.4.2. Contribution rates for works schedule items involving land yet to be acquired

For changes to land values, the Council will publish at least on an annual basis the revised land index values that are to be used to change the base land values contained in the Plan which will be determined in accordance with the following formula:

#### \$C<sub>LV</sub> + \$C<sub>LV</sub> x ([Current LV - Base LV Index]) [Base Index]

where:

\$C <sub>LV</sub>	is the land values within the plan at the time of adoption	
	of the plan expressed in dollars	
Current LV Index	is the land value index as published by the Council	
	available at the time of review of the contribution rate	

Base LV Index

is the land value index as published by the Council at the date of adoption of this plan.

Note: This clause does not cover the adjustment of a contribution between the time of consent and the time payment is made. This is covered by clause 2.21.4.3.

#### 2.22.4.3. How are contributions adjusted at the time of payment?

The contributions stated in a development consent are calculated on the basis of the section 94 contribution rates determined in accordance with this plan. If the contributions are not paid within the quarter in which consent is granted, the contributions payable will be adjusted and the amount payable will be calculated on the basis of the contribution rates that are applicable at time of payment in the following manner:

$$C_P = C_{DC} + [C_{DC} \times \{(C_Q - C_C) / C_C \}]$$

where:

\$ C <sub>₽</sub>	is the amount of the contribution calculated at the time of payment
\$ C <sub>DC</sub>	is the amount of the original contribution as set out in the development consent
\$ C <sub>Q</sub> \$ C <sub>C</sub>	is the contribution rate applicable at the time of payment is the contribution rate applicable at the time of the original consent
Ψ • υ	is the contribution rate applicable at the time of the ongline consent

The current contributions are published by Council and are available from Council offices. Should the Council not validly publish the applicable contribution rates, the rate applicable will be calculated in accordance with the rate prevailing in the previous year.

#### 2.23. Review and Monitoring of Plan

This plan will be subject to regular review by Council in accordance with the provisions of the EP&A Regulation. The purpose of such a review is to ensure that:

- levels of public service and amenity provisions are consistent with population trends and community needs;
- contribution levels reflect changes to construction costs and land values;
- the works program can be amended if the rate of development differs from current expectations.

The contribution rates and works program for this plan have been formulated using information available at the time of writing. A number of variables will be monitored to facilitate the review process. Some of these are listed below:

- lot production and dwelling construction
- construction costs
- land costs
- anticipated population

The contribution rates will be reviewed by reference to the following specific indices:

- construction costs by reference to the Australian Bureau of Statistics Producer Price Index.
- land acquisition costs by reference to the Australian Bureau of Statistics Established House Price index for Sydney.

• changes in the capital costs of various studies and activities required to support the strategies in the plan by reference to the actual costs incurred by council in obtaining these studies.

Any changes to the Contributions Plan, apart from indexing and minor typographical corrections, will be placed on public exhibition in accordance with the requirements of the EP&A Act and Regulation.

#### 2.24. Contributions Register

A Contributions Register will also be maintained for this Contributions Plan in accordance with the EP&A Regulation and may be inspected on request. This Register will include:

- (1) details of each consent for which a Section 94 condition has been imposed;
- (2) the nature and extent of the contribution required by the condition for each facility category;
- (3) the name of the Contributions Plan the condition was imposed under; and
- (4) the date any contribution was received and its nature and extent.

At the end of the each financial year, the Council is required to make an annual statement within the yearly budget. This statement must include the following:

- (1) Opening and closing balances of money held in the Section 94 Contributions Plan by the Council for the accounting period;
- (2) Total amounts received by way of monetary contribution under this Plan;
- (3) Total amount spent in accordance with this Plan; and
- (4) Outstanding obligations of the Council to provide works for which contributions have been received.

#### 2.25. Inforce Date of Plan

This Plan came into force on XX XXX 2016

## **Part 3 - Strategy Plans**

This section sets out the strategies that Council intends to follow to cater to the needs of future population growth and development in the Calderwood release area. It identifies the resulting demand for public services and public facilities and the costs and timing of provision of the works that the Council intends to provide to cater to that demand.

It is important to note that the Calderwood area will develop over many years and planning for facilities at this stage of the development must recognise that population demands will vary over time, and may possibly vary from the assumptions that are used to determine the contributions that are set out in this plan. The Council will continually monitor population growth and demand, and where necessary, will appropriately adjust the facilities to ensure that the facilities are delivered to meet the demands of the population.

#### 3. Residential Development Nexus

#### 3.1. Rationale for New Facilities and Services

A key principle of Section 94 is to demonstrate a relationship between the anticipated development and the demand for additional open space, community facilities, drainage and road works. The demonstration of a relationship between new development and such demand is a core requirement of a valid Contributions Plan.

The Calderwood Release Area includes approximately 50 hectares for retail, community, education, commercial and employment uses.

The first stage of the development includes a village centre with specialty stores, office buildings and cafés. There will also be a town centre and multi-purpose community resource centre that will include a library.

Calderwood Release Area will also provide for 217ha of open space. Therefore this Plan only seeks to recoup the costs for new roads.

The expected development and resulting population and their travel needs from the Calderwood Release area will create an increased demand on roads within the West Dapto Release Area in Stage 5 being Yallah Marshall Mount.

The service area identified as being required to address the impacts of the expected development, including:

- Traffic and transport management facilities; and
- Plan administration.

The following section of the Contributions Plan identifies the nexus between the proposed urban release and the facilities or services listed above. It specifies the appropriate level of apportionment, and provides a brief description of the proposed works and their timing.

#### 3.2. Cost of Facilities

Costs for facilities included in this Plan were derived from the services of a qualified quantity surveyor and/or from Council's experience of facility costs in other areas. Assumptions used to derive estimated costs of facilities included in this Plan are detailed in the following Sections.

At the time this Plan was prepared, the planning of facilities was carried out at a strategic level. That is there were few, if any, facility concept plans upon which estimated costs could be based. As a result, a contingency allowance equivalent to 15 percent of the base cost was added to all works included in this Plan (excluding land acquisition). The contingency allowance is considered reasonable given the early stage of planning of most facilities included in the Plan.

#### 3.3. Transport Facilities

#### 3.3.1. Transport Facilities Demand

Wollongong City Council has developed a Local Government Area wide traffic model to establish the required road hierarchy to service the future population of West Dapto and Calderwood Release Areas. This model, combined with practical planning experience establishes the need for infrastructure works resulting from the development of these Release Area, namely:

- Capacity improvements to existing road and intersection infrastructure;
- Intersection treatment upgrades (i.e. priority controls, roundabouts, or traffic signals);
- Road widening, and condition improvements;
- Bridging structures over creek lines, railway corridors and major roads;
- Bus accessible routes through West Dapto and connections to Dapto, and bus stop facilities; and
- Optimising of public transport routes and infrastructure.

The urbanisation of the release area will necessitate the establishment of an extensive traffic movement network. The works are considered necessary to facilitate development, whilst ensuring an acceptable level of access, safety and convenience for all road users within the release area.

Based on the traffic modelling, the major road network proposed for the Calderwood Release Area consists of two road types, being major and minor collectors. Both these road types are suitable to cater for bus routes. The proposed road network has taken into consideration the heavily constrained nature of the release area, including flooding and electricity easement.

#### 3.3.2. Proposed Transport Facilities

The following infrastructure works will be required to facilitate the development of the West Dapto Release Area:

#### 3.3.2.1. Roads

This Plan includes a total of 9.93km of funded collector roads.

Transport Facilities					
Item Item Identification	Description	Quantity (lin m)			
Existing local roads					
Yallah Road	4 lane	650			
Marshall Mount Road	2 lanes	4,480			
New local roads					
Local Road	2 lanes	2,300			
NR100-NR103	2 lanes	2,500			
Design and Project Management		10%			
Construction Contingency		20%			

#### 3.3.2.2. Bridge Crossings

This Plan includes eight (8) funded crossings.

Bridge	Crossings					
	Road No &/or name	Link Description	Link Lengt h (m)	Link Lanes	Width (m)	Туре
	Watercourse Bridges					
B18A	Marshall Mt Rd (2 x Duck Ck tributaries)	Yallah Rd to Huntley Rd	6	4	21	plank up to 20m upgrade
B18B	Marshall Mt Rd (2 x Duck Ck tributaries)	Yallah Rd to Huntley Rd	45	4	21	super T over 20m upgrade
B19	Marshall Mt Rd	Yallah Rd to LGA boundary	6	4	21	plank up to 20m upgrade
B20B	Yallah Rd (3 x Duck Ck tributaries)	Marshall Mt Rd to F6 freeway	6	2	14	plank up to 20m upgrade
	Bridges for New Roads					
B30A	Road No.8 (2x Duck Ck tributaries)	Avondale Rd to Marshall Mt Rd	88	4	21	super T over 20m new
B30B	Road No.8 (2x Duck Ck tributaries)	Avondale Rd to Marshall Mt Rd	25	4	21	super T over 20m new
B46	Local Rd	Marshall Mount Rd to Yallah Rd	9			plank up to 20m upgrade
	Rail Bridges					
B47	Local Rd	Marshall Mount Rd to Yallah Rd			plank structure	

#### 3.3.2.3. Intersections

This Plan contains four (4) funded intersections.

Intersections			
Site number	Road 1	Road 2	Facility
Int 36	Road 8	Avondale Road	large signals
Int 40	Marshall Mount Rd	Yallah Rd	large signals
Int 107	Local Rd	MM2	small signals
Int 108	Local Rd	Y2	small signals

#### 3.3.3. Apportionment

The need to provide the traffic and transport facilities identified in this part of the Plan is predominately generated by the residential development of West Dapto however Calderwood has been identified as a significant source of traffic generation travelling north through the Yallah Marshall Mount Area. As such the cost of infrastructure has been applied and apportioned appropriately across both the West Dapto Section 94 Development Contribution Plan and this Plan.

#### 3.3.4. Schedule of Works and Costs Estimates

A schedule of transport facilities to be levied under this plan is included in Table 4.3 - Works Schedules.

#### 3.3.5. Contribution Formula

The formula used to calculate the contributions rate for transport facilities costs is set out in Section 2.22.4

The contribution rates for transport facilities costs are set out in Table 4.3.

#### 3.4. Plan Administration

#### 3.4.1. Administration and Plan Preparation

The preparation, on-going review, and implementation of this Contributions Plan requires significant Council resources. This includes allocation of time from strategic planning, services delivery and community development staff together with professional fees, to prepare and review the Contributions Plan.

Once the Plan is in place, further staff time will be required to manage the contributions system which includes the calculation and recording of contribution payments, monitoring development, population growth, works expenditure and indexation. The costs associated with the preparation and administration of this Plan will therefore be levied for under this Contributions Plan.

Administration and Plan preparation costs have been based on 1% of the total cost of the Plan.

#### 3.4.2. Apportionment

The need for administration of the Contributions Plan is generated by the residential development of Calderwood and West Dapto.

It is appropriate and reasonable that the Plan administration costs be set at 1% of the total.

#### 3.4.3. Contribution Formula

The formula used to calculate the contributions rate for administration costs is set out in Section 2.22.4.

# Part 4 – Work Schedules

### Table 4.1 Transport Facilities (External to Calderwood Release Area)

Fransp	port Facilities									
ltem	Item Identification	Description	Quantity	Unit	Pavement	Intersections	Bridges	Capital Cost	Acquisition Cost	Total Cost
Existin	Existing local roads									
	Yallah Road	4 lane	650	Lin m	\$995,627	\$114,488	\$86,506	\$1,196,621	\$601,216	\$1,797,837
	Marshall Mount Road	2 lanes	4480	Lin m	\$9,740,646	\$333,056	\$4,387,120	\$14,460,822	\$2,547,782	\$17,008,604
New lo	ocal roads									
	NR1-NR3	4 lanes	2500	Lin m	\$6,266,181	\$545,040	\$5,040,787	\$11,852,008	\$5,040,000	\$16,892,008
	Local Road	2 lanes	2300	Lin m	\$10,889,230	\$0	\$1,866,972	\$12,756,202	\$2,233,392	\$14,989,594
	Design and Project Management		10%	item				\$4,026,565		\$4,026,565
	Construction Contingency		20%	item			,	\$8,053,131		\$8,053,131
Sub To	otal				\$27,891,684	\$992,584	\$11,381,385	\$52,345,349	\$10,422,390	\$62,767,739



# Part 5 - Supporting Material

The Section 94 plan is supported by the following documents:

- West Dapto Urban Release Area Integrated Transport Plan (Aecom, October 2010)
- West Dapto Urban Release Area Stages 1 & 2 Road Network Infrastructure needs Study Transport Modelling & Analysis (WCC, Oct 2010)
- Road Infrastructure (Section 94) Estimates Review (GHD 2010)
- Yallah Marshall Mount Traffic Study (Bitzios consulting 2013)
- Duck Creek Flood Study (BMT WBM 2012)
- Yallah Marshall Mount Floodplain Risk Management Study (BMT WBM 2013)
- Marshall Mount and Yallah Road Upgrade Strategic Concept design (SMEC 2015)
- Yallah Marshall Mount Precinct Draft Structure Plan and Infrastructure Costs Report (WCC 2015)
- TRACKS Land Use/Transport models (WCC various)

# **Part 6 – Definitions**

In this Plan, the following words and phrases have the following meanings:

Applicant	means the person, company or organisation submitting a
Attributable cost	development application. means the estimated cost for each item in the works schedules set out in Part 4 of this Plan, which may differ from the final actual cost of the item. It will be the value used in determining the amount of any offset of monetary contributions as a result of any works-in-kind
Contribution	proposal. means the dedication of land, the making of a monetary contribution or the provision of a material public benefit, as referred to in Section 94 of the EP&A Act.
Council	means the Council of the City of Wollongong.
CPI	means the All Groups Consumer Price Index (Sydney) as published
	by the Australian Bureau of Statistics.
Embellishment	means the enhancement of any public facility provided by the
	Council by the provision of services, facilities or works.
EP&A Act	means the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 as
	amended.
EP & A Regulation	means the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000
	as amended.
LEP	means a local environmental plan made by the Minister under
	Section 70 of the EP&A Act.
LGA	means local government area
Net developable land	means all land within West Dapto that can be used for economic
	purposes plus half the width of any adjoining access roads that
	provide vehicular access, but excluding land:
	that has been identified by the [NSW Department of
	Planning] to be required for the provision of infrastructure
	utilising the special infrastructure contributions under
	section 94EF of the EP&A Act;
	set aside for publicly owned community facilities and/or
	community services provided or to be provided under this
	Plan or another contributions plan prepared under section 94 of the EP&A Act;
	<ul> <li>set aside for roads provided or to be provided under this Plan or another contributions plan prepared under section</li> </ul>
	94 of the EP&A Act;
_	<ul> <li>used as regional RTA roads;</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>used as existing roads to be included as part of the</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>used as existing roads to be included as part of the proposed road network;</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>identified in the Wollongong Development Control Plan</li> </ul>
	2009 Chapter D16 as being set aside for public open space;
	<ul> <li>that is flood affected, below the 1 in 100 year flood level;</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>that is located in a high hazard flood zone;</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>that is located in a high hazard hood zone,</li> <li>that is within a core riparian zone or riparian buffer area;</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>for public schools and TAFE colleges;</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>for publicly owned health facilities;</li> </ul>

	<ul> <li>for ambulance stations, fire stations &amp; police stations;</li> <li>for bus depots, bus/rail interchanges;</li> <li>for rail corridors, rail stations &amp; associated parking facilities; and</li> <li>facilities provided by Sydney Water, Integral Energy or equivalent water, sewer or energy provider.</li> <li>For the purposes of this Plan, economic purposes are residential purposes and retail, commercial, business, industrial, education and other employment purposes.</li> </ul>
Planning Agreement	means a voluntary planning agreement referred to in Section 93F of the EP&A Act.
Public facility	means any public amenity or public service, as referred to in section 94 of the EP&A Act, the need for which has increased or been created by development.
Recoupment	means the payment of a monetary contribution to the Council to offset the cost (plus any interest) that the Council has already incurred in providing public facilities in anticipation of development.
Settlement	means the payment of a monetary contribution, the undertaking of a work in kind or the exchange of documents for the dedication of land required as a result of new development.
Special Infrastructure	means a contribution imposed as a condition of development
Contribution	consent in accordance with Section 94EF of the EP&A Act.
Works in kind	means the undertaking of a work or provision of a facility by an applicant which is already nominated in the works schedule of a contributions plan.
Works schedule	means the schedule of the specific public facilities for which contributions may be required, and the likely timing of provision of those public facilities based on projected rates of development, the collection of development contributions and the availability of funds from supplementary sources, as set out in this Plan.